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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of DA Toll Road Private Limited

Report on the Audit of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind A8) Financlal Statements

Opinion

We have audifed the Ind AS financial statements of DA Toll Road Private Limited (“the Company®),
which comprlse the balance shest as at March 31, 2019, and the statement of Profit and Lass,
staterent of change In equily and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the ind
AS financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information. {hereinafter referred to as ‘the Ind AS financial statements®),

In our opinion and fo the best of our Information and according to the explanations given to us, the afore
said Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2019, and {oss,
changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date,

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section
143(10) of the Gompanies Act, 2013, Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described
in the Auditor's Respensibiiities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Stalements section of our report,
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilfed our other ethical responsibilities In accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our gpinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described

below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue Recognition: Toll Road Concession Arrangements

The company inter alia engages in toll road | As part of our audit, we:

concession arrangement, where, revenue, i.e. ¢ Reviewed terms and conditions of toll
construction income, is recognized using the road concession arrangement, the
percentage of completion of the contract activity at cantractual sums and checked project
the end of each reporting period. revenues and costs incurred against

underlying suppoﬂin’g documents.

The stage of completion is measured by reference
to the proportion of contract cost incurred to date ¢« Conducted site visits and discussed the
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method).

The accounting for such toll road concassion
arrangements 18 complex due o high level of
estimation uncertainty in determining the costs to
complete, This uncerlainly is due 1o the nature of
the oparations, which may be impacted by the
technical complexity of projects and the precision
of cost estimation as at balance sheel date. The
uncertainty  and  subjectivity could result in
estimation  variances  which  will  affect  the
determination of revenue, and hence may have a
significant impact on the results of the Group.
Accordingly, revenue recognition from toll road
concession arrangement is identified as a key
audit matter,

managers  for  Indications  of  any
potential  disputes,  variation  orcer
glaims, known technlcal issues or

sighilficant events that could imipact the
estimaled costs or revenues,

Analysed changes in estimales of cosls
from prior periods and assessed the
consistency of these changes wilh
progress of the projects, if any, during
the year.

Examined approved  project  cost
budgets and reviewed management's
catimates for total conlract costs and
forecasted costs to complets,
congidering the historical accuracy of
such estimates.

Reviewed the projects’ completion
percentages in light of costs incurred.

Assessed the adequacy of the
companies disclosures made in fo the
financial statements

Intangible Assets: Toll Road Concession Arrangements

Intangible  assets  arising out of service
cohcession arrangements are accounted for as
intangible assets where the company has a
contractual right to charge users of service when
the projects are completed.

Apart from above as per the service concession
agreement the Company is entitled to receive
amount of grant from National Highways
Authority of India (NHAI).

The total grant receivable from the grantor as per
the Service Concession Arrangement s
recognized as an ‘“other financial assets” at
amortized cost,

The intangible assets is measured at the fair
value of consideration ftransferred to acguire
asset, which is the fair value of consideration
received or receivable for the construction
services delivered.

The accounting for such toll road concession
arrangements is complex due to high level of
estimation uncertainty in determining the costs to
complete. This uncertainty is due to the nature of
the operations, which may be impacted by the
technical complexity of projects and the precision
of cost estimation as at balance sheet date. The
uncertainty and subjectivity could result in
estimation variances which will affect the amount

As part of our audit, we;

L)

Reviewed terms and conditions of toll
road concession arrangement, the
contractual sums and checked project
revenues and costs incurred against
underlying supporting documents that
arose the Intangible Assets.

Conducted site visits and discussed the
progress of the projects with project
managers for indications of any potential
disputes, variation order claims, known
technical issues or significant events that
could impact the amount of Intangible
assets recognized.

Analysed changes in estimates of costs
from prior periods and assessed the
congistency of these changes with
progress of the projects during the year.

Reviewed  the projects  revenue
generated during the current year against
the forecast initially considered.

Assessed the adequacy of the
companies disclosures made in to the
financial statements
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of intangible assels, and hence may have a
significant impact on the financial position of the
company. Accordingly, an intangible assets from
toll road concession arrangement Is identified as
a key audit matier,

Responsibllity of Management for the Ind A8 Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters staled in section 134(8) of the
Companles Act, 2013 with respect fo the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principtes generally accepied In India, including the
accounting Slandards specified under section 133 of the Acl. This responsibility also includes
maintanance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assefs of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
rregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and compieteness of the accounting records, relevant (o the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial slatement that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

n preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management Is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends o liquidate ihe
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

OCur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial slatements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these ind AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

+ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls,

»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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» Conclude on the appropristeness of managemenl's use of the going concern bagis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncerlainly exmsts
rolated 1o events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ahility to
continue as & going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw aftention in our auditor's reporl to the related disclosures in the Ind AS financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are
haged on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company o cease to continue as a going concern,

» Evaluale the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financlal staterments,
including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events In & manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and liming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencles In
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them ail
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we delermine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2019 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors
repert unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the maiter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matter

The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2018, prepared in
accordance with Indian Accounting Standards, included in these Standalone Financial Statements,
have been audited by another Firm of Chartered Accountants who, vide their report dated April 21,
2018, expressed an unmodified opinion. Cur opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order"), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give

in the ‘Annexure B' a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the
extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that;

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account;
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d) In our opindon, the aforesald Ind AS financlal statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Acl, read with Rule 7 of the Companigs (Accounts) Rules,
2014;

e) On the basis of the writlen representations recelved from the directors as on March 31, 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31,
2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer fo our separate Report In
“Annexure A"

g) With respect to the other matlers to be included in the Auditor's Report In accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
Information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact s financial position.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
fhere were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2019,

fi. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

For 8. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountanis
Firm Registration Number: 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : May 17, 2019 Membership Number: 146268
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Referred fo in paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulstory Requirersants” of our repor!
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the

Act

1.

We have audited the internal financlal controls over financial reporting of DA Toll Road Private Limited
("the Company") as of March 31, 2019 In conjunction with our audit of the financlal stalements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2,

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on internal control over financlal reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation, and maintenance of
adequate internal financlal controts which were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information,
as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and both
issued by issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of tndia (ICA. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements was established and maintained and if such
controts operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financiai control system over financial reporting with reference to these financial stalements and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controis over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exist, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risk of
material misstatement of the financial statement, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to these Financial
Statements

6.

A company's internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with the Generally Accepted Accounting Principles. A company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements includes those policies and

procedures that :

i. pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable details, accurately and fairly reflect
the transaction and dispositions of the assets of the company;
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0. provide reasonable assurance that tansactions are recorded as nacessary 10 penmit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with the generally accepled aceounling
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company ave beirg made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

iil.  provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or fmely detaction of unauthorlzed
acquisition, use, or dispositions of the company's assets that could have a material eflect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting With Reference to
these Financial Statements

7.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with reference
fo these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management overrde
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detecled. Alsa,
projections of any evaluation of the inlernal financlal controls over financial reporting with reference to
these financial statements to future period are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements may become inadecquate
because of the changes In conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the poiicies or
procedures may deteriorate,

Opinion

8.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given o us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2019, based on the internal controt over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financiat Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India,

For 8 K Patodia 8 Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Place : Mumbai Partner
Date : May 17, 2019 Membership No. : 146268
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i, {a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitadive
details and situation of fixed assola.

{b) All the propertly, plant & equipment are physically verifled by the Managemeni according to
phased programme designed 1o cover all the items over the year which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of ils assels. No
malerial discrepancies have been noficed on such verification.

(¢) As per the records examined by us, the Company does not have any immovable property.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(4)(c) of the Order are not applicabls to the Company.

ii. ~ The Company does not hold any inventory. Therefore, the provislons of Clause 3(ii} of the sald
Order are not applicable to the Company.

#i. The Company has not granted any unsecured loan, to the companies covered In {he register
maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013. The company also has not granted
any secured or unsecured loans to firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act.

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company hag
not given any loan, guarantee or security in respect of loans or made investments, as per the
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

v.  The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,
74,75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified,

vi. The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government of India under
sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act. We have broadly reviewed the books of
account maintained by the company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for
the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 the Act and are of the
opinion that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained.
We have nof, however, made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine
whether they are accurate or compiete

vii. {a) According to the information and expfanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, in our opinion, the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory
dues, including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax,
goods & service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, and other material
statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities,

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, goods & service tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been deposited on
account of any dispute, The particulars of dues of service tax as at March 31, 2018 which
have not been deposited on account of a dispute are as follows:

Name of Name of dues | Amount (Rs Period to which Forum where the
Statue in millions) amount relates dispute is pending
Finance Act, Service Tax 96.27 FY 2010-2015 The Custom, Excise
1994 & Service Tax
Appellate Tribunal

viii. According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has made defaults in repayment of loans or borrowings to financial
institution or banks at the balance sheet date. The amount of Interest under default accrued and
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i,

X,

xiii.

Xiv,

XV.

Xvi.

due as on the date of the Balance sheet has been provided in the table befow. The Company
does not have any loans or borrowings from Government. Further, the Company has not issued
any debentures

Nature of Loans / | Periodicity | Amounts
Borrowing of Paymernt  (in Millions)

Domestic Bank Monthly 288.18
Foreign Bank Quarterly 112,46
“Hedging T Quarterly _ 9,26

Total o 4090.89

According to the information and explanations glven to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the period. Accordingly,
provisions of Clause 3 (ix) of the Order are not applicable {o the company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried oul in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing praclices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by iis officers or employees, noticed or reporied
during the period, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Managemeri,

As the company is private fimited company, therefore, paragraph 3 (xi) of the order with regards
to payment of managerial remuneration is not applicable to the company

As the Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to i, the
provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

fn our opinion and as per information and explanations provided to us by management all the
transactions with the refated parties are in compliance with the provisions of sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard {Ind AS) 24, Related Party
Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014,

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or
partly convertible debentures during the period under review. Accordingly the provisions of
clause 3(xiv) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or
persons connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the

Company.

For 8. K. Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number; 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria

Place: Mumbai Pariner
Date: May 17, 2019 Membership No. : 146268



DA Toll Road Private Limited
Balance Sheet as al March 31, 2019

¥ Mitionsg
] As at Ag at
Particutars Note 31st March, 2048 37sf March, 2018
ASBETS
Non-current assets
(a) Intangible assets 4 22,661.73 16,7821
(b) Intangible assets under development 4 2,540,587 5,801,468
{c) Referred lax assets (net) 26 () 170.52 196.25
Current assoets
(a) Financial Assets
{iy investments Ha - 854,08
(it} Cash and cash equivalents 5b 1,560.44 148506
(i) Other financial asset B 614.97 366.04
{b) Current Tax Assets (Net) 36,89 20,53
(c) Other current assefs G 153.81 121.06
Total Assels 27,648.83@ 24 474.01
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital 1 90.18 0018
(b) Subordinated debt (in nature of Equity) 8 4,449.10 4,449.10
(¢} Other equity 8 3,774.10 3,781.20
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabitities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings Oa 17,748.56 15,109.24
(i) Other financial fiabilities 11b 4553 195.74
{b) Provisions 12b 10.14 19.33
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i} Borrowings b 154.40 164,40
(i) Trade payables
i) Total outstanding dues of micro 10 ) i
enterprises and small enterprises
iiy Total outstanding dues of creditors
other than micro enterprises and small 10 106.92 41.57
enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities 11a 1,239.81 630.62
{b) Other current liahilities 13 27.52 0.65
(c) Provisions 12a 2.67 1.97
Total Equity and Liabilities 27,648.93 24 47401

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements.

As per our altached report of even date.

For § K Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 112723W

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Partner
Membership No. : 146268

Date:
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board

Kaushik Pal
Director
DIN:05237230

DINLO7130371

Srilatha Gopal
Company Secretary

Date:
Place: Mumbai



DA Toll Road Pyt iLtd
Statement of Profit and Loss for (e yoar endod March 34, 2019

_ T Millions
Youar endoed Year ended
Particulars Noto March 31, 2018 March 31, 2018
Revenue from Operations 5,400,841 6,156,385
Other Income 15 _ 67.16 199.17
Total Income 8,5837.47 _G,365.52
Expenses
Tolt Operatton and Mainlainence expanses 16 273,08 A10.51
Construction cost 2,776.64 3,806.65
Employee benefits expense 17 66.27 73.19
Finance cosis 18 1.474.20 1,082.44
Depreciation and amorlization expense 4 86073 786.29
Other expenses 19 66,73 _ 70.71
Totai expenses 5,616,656 $6,3290.78
Profit/ (loss) before tax 21.32 25.73
Tax expense
Current tax 1.60 1.00
Deferred tax charge/(credit) 26.78 31.72
Income tax for earlier years 4,43 -
Profit/(L.oss) for the period (IX + X!i) {11.39) {6.99)}
Other Comprehensive Income
{i) tems that will not be reclassified
to profit or loss
Remeasurements of net defined 6.24 (1.84)
benefit plans ; Gains / (Loss)
{#i) income tax relating to items that will not
be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurements of nef defined henefil plans 1.96 (0.64)
Other Comprehensive income for the year 4.29 (1.20)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year {7.10) (8.19)
Earnings per equity share of Rs. 10 each
Basic & Diluted 34 {1.26) (0.78)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Financial Stalements.

As per our altached report of even date.

For S K Patodia & Associates For and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 112723wW

Dhiraj Lalpuria Kaushik Pal Midap Biydni
Partner Director ir&clor
Membership No. : 146268 DIN:05237230 DINYY7130371

Srilatha Gopal
Company Gecretary

pate: 1 1 MAY 2019 Date: | 1 MAY 2019

Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai



DA Toll Road Pyt g
Gash flow Statomant for the year ended March 31, 2019

A

B

c

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Profit before exceptionat Homs and fax
Adjusttnents for:
Daprection and amarttsalion sxpenges
Irtrest coma
Nist (gain)foss on sade of invesimends
Inderest expense
Mark-to-marke! (gain)oss on dedvalive financial instruments

Cash Gonerated from Operations hefore

working capiial changoes

Adjustments for.
(IncreaseMdecreass in financial assaels oxcept for invastments
{Incraase)/decreass in other curen! sesels
increasef{docreans) in irads payables
Increrase/(dacrease) i olher inancial liablites
Increase/{decrease) in provisions
Increase/(decrenge) In other cusrent liabilities

Cash generated from operations
Taxes (paid} net of refunds

Net cash generated from operating activities - [A)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Purchase/sale proceeds of inlangible assets (inctuding intanglbfe
asses! under devetopment)
Purchase of curent investimants (el of proceeds)
Interest received
Net cash (used In}/ generated from Investing activities - [B]

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from long term borrowings
Repayment of Jong farm borrowihgs
Inferest paid

Net cash used in financing activities - [C)

Net increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equivalents - [A+B+C)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks - in Current accounts

Cash on hand
Total Cash and cash equivalents

? Millions

Ymrﬁnc{md h
March 11, 2019

Year ondiad
March 31, 2018

21,42 2573
860.73 766.29
{7.43) (159.79)
{10.18) (39.32)
1,460.77 1.068.14
{30.00) 2330
2,206,23 7,605
{241.06) 952,18
(31.86) (1.41)
8635 (715 .94)
(162.96) 2331
(2.25) 6.15
26.06 (1.91)
{336.70) 762,00
1,959.62 1,950.39
(8.86) (5.78)
7,060.60 7862 55
(2,435.91) (3.902.11)
964.24 (914.77)
0.36 8.80
(1,477.3) {4,608.08)
2,666.10 3.872.00
{60.30) (16.47)
(1,664.27) (1,290.60)
BE1.54 7,564 62
1,430.88 (290.60)
149,56 44016
1,680.44 149.56
1,568.54 141.49
11.90 8.07
1,580.44 149.56

* Balance in current account with banks of Rs 1568.54 Million ( Rs 141.49 Million) lying in escrow account held as

securily against borrowings.

As per our attached report of even date.

For 8 K Patodia & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 112723wW

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Pariner
Membership No. : 146268

Date: |
Place: Mumbai

For and on behalf of the Board

Kaushik Pal
Director
DIN:05237230

Srifatha Gopal
Company Secretary

‘Whdar Biyani

ctor

DINGO7 130371

Date: 1 7 M/\Y 201\@

Place: Mumbai
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Statemont of Changos In Equity

A Note 7 - EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

¥ Mitlons

Balance at tho
heglining of the
yoar

Changos iy aquity
share caphinl
during the yoar

Ralance sl e end
of the year

For the year anded 315t March, 2018 90.18 50T
Faor the year ended 31st March, 2019 8018 96,18
B, Note 8 - OTHER EQUITY ¥ Millions
Equity Component Reuerves and GBurplug
of compoud
financiat Securitios Retained Barnlngs Total
instrumants Premium
Accotd
Balance al Aprit 01, 2017 1.20 #1072 297747 3.780.39
#eofil for the year (6.59) (6.9
Other comprehensive income for the year (1.2 {1.20)
Total comprehensive income for the year - - (B.19) (819
Balance at 315t March 2048 1.20 810,72 2.989.28 3.781.20
Rafance at April 01, 2018 1.20 810,72 2,969.28 3,781.20
Profit for the year {11.39) (11.39)
Other comprehensive income for the year 4.29 4,29
Total comprehensive income for the year . - (7.10) (7.10)
Halance at 31st March 2019 1.20 810.72 2,062.18 3,774.10

As per our altached report of even dale.

For 8§ K Patodia & Associates
Charlered Accountants
Firm Regn. No. 112723w

Dhiraj Lalpuria
Partner
Membaership No. : 146268

Date: 1 7 MAY ?O]g

Place: Mumbai

For and ors bahall of the Board

Kaushik Pal
Director
DIN:(5237230

Srilatha Gopal
Company Secretary

Date: 1 7 Mf}\\{ ZD{E&

Place: Mumbai




3.1

3.2

DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 1: Carporate information

DA Tolt Road Private Limited ( the " Company”) has been awarded lo carry on the business of design,
engineer, procure, construct, fabricale, build, improve, sirangthen, operats, maintain and provide
infrastructural facitilies of afl types including roads, bridges, culverts, over bridges, underpasses, flyovers,
toli plaza, traffic management systems and equipment, buildings and olher infrastructures and collect toll,
lees, or charges, carry out suivays, investigations, polls and regulate traffic in connection with the project
o he taken up by the Company on Design, Build, Operate and Transfer (DBFOT) basis under the
Concession Agreement dated July 26, 2010 with National Highways Authority of India. The Concesssion
Agreement is for a period of 26 years from appointed dale for Design, Engineering, Construelion,
Operation and Maintenance for Six laning of Delhi to Agra section of National Mighway ~ 2 (km 20,50 to kan
200.00) in {he state of Haryana/Htar Pradesh or otherwise.

Note 2: Basis of preparation

These Financial Statements comply in all material aspects with Indisrs Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
nolified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [{Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015} and cther relevamt provisions of the Acl. TheseFinancial Statements have boeen
prepared in accordance with the requirements of the information and disclosures mandated by Schedule

Hl of the Act, appficable Ind AS, other applicable pronouncements and regulations.

These Financial Statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, excepl for certain assels and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value.For the purpose of preparation of these Financial
Statements, the transition date lo Ind AS is considered as Aprit 1, 2015,

These Financial Statements are presented in “Millions, except where otherwise indicated.

Note 3: Summary of Significant accounting policies

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presends assets and fabilitlies in the balance sheel based on current! non-current
classification,

An assel is treated as current when it is:
= Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

*  Expected o be realised within iwelve months after the reporting peried, or
*  Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least

tweive months after the reporting period
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

= ltis expecled to be setlled in normat operating cycle

» Itis due to be seilled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

*  There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after

the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and Habilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in
cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Fareign currencies

Functional and presentation currency
ftems included in the Financial Statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the

primary economic envirenment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency'). The Financial
Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (),which is the Company's functional and presentation

cuirency.
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DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2019

Transactions and balences

Foratgn currency fransactions sre tranglated inte the functional crrency using the exchangs rales
prevajing @t the dales of the transactions. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settemant of such transactions and from the translalion af yerdr-end exchange rates of monstary agssels
and fiabililies denominated in forelgn cumencies are meognissd i the Statement of Profit and Loss with an
excaplion of the following.-

Under Ind AB 21 exchange differences arsing on the ranstadion/setilement of non-monetary item should
ba freated as income o foss in Statement of Profit and Loss, However, Ind AS 101 gives an exemption for
existing long torm foreign currency non-monetary ffems wherein tha Gompany can continue the policy
adopted for teatmen! of exchange differences arlsing on long-enm forsign currency monalary ttems
peitaining to the acquisition of a depreciable assel for lems recognized on or before March 31, 2018,

For any new long term foreign currency nornsmonelary item racognized from or after first Ind AS financial
reporting period, deferrallamontization of exchange difference wil not be allowed, rather the Company will
apply ind AS 21 for recognition of gains and losses,

Falr value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be recelved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a fiabilily in an orderly
transaction belween market participants al the measwement date. The fair value measuremen! is based
on the presumplion that the transaction to sell the assel or ransfer the liability takes place either:

» n the principal inarket {or the asset or liability, or
*  Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an assel or a Hability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming thal market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial assel takes inlo account a market participant's ability to
generate economic benefils by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
dala are available lo measure fair value, rmaximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing

the use of unchservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Financial Statements are
categorized within the fairvalue hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is

significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2. Valuation technigues for which the lowest fevel input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is directly or indirectly observable
Level 3 -Valuation techniques for which the lowest levet input that is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the Financial Statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole)

at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurringand non -~
recurring fair value measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured

at fair value,

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabifities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company's accounting policies. For this
analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the
information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant
external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Companyhas determined classes of assets and liabilities-ti



DA Tol Road Private Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2019

the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assel or liability and the level of the fulr value
higrirehy as sxplained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given i (he
relavant notes,

Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimales and assumplions of Flnancial instruments
(including those carrled af amortised cosl(nole 20) and Quantilative disclosures of fair valie measurement
hierarchy (note 21).

3.4 Revanue recognition

Ind AS 116 "Revenue from Conlracls with Cuslomers” provides a confrob based revenue recognilion
madel and provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue recognition.

+ tdentify the condract(s) with a customer;

« Ildenlify the performance obligations;

+ Beterming the transaction price;

+ Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

+ Recognize revenue when of as an enlity satisfies performance obligations

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to
be enlitfed in exchange for those goods or sevices. Revenue is recognizad when no significant
uncerlainty exists as to its realization or collection,

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. The Company
recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity; and when specific criteria have been met for the Company's

activilies, as described below,
Toll revenue

The income from toll revenue from operations of the facilily is accounted on accrual basis,

Contract revenue (construction contracts)

Effective from April 1, 2018, the Company adopted Ind AS 115 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” using the cumulative catch-up transition method, applied to contracts that were not
completed as at April 1, 2018, There was no major impact on adoption of Ind AS 115 in the
financial statements. Therefore, the comparatives have not been retrospectively adjusted.

Contracts revenue is recognised over time by measuring progress towards complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation at the reporting date, measured based on the proportion of contract
costs incurred for work performed to date relative to the estimated total contract costs, using the
input method. Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred
except when the costs are the costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will be used
in satisfying performance obligation in future.

Contract cost includes costs that refate directly to the specific contract and allocated costs that
are attributable to the construction of the toll roads. Cost that cannot be attributed to the contract
activity such as general administration costs are expensed as incurred and classified as other

operating expenses.

The Company accounts for a contract modification {change in the scope or price (or both)) when
that is approved by the parties to the contract,

Where the outcome of a performance obligation cannot be reasonably measured, contract
revenue is recognised to the extent of costs incurred in satisfying the performance obligation that

is expected to be recovered.
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DA Toli Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and of the year ended March 31, 2019

When it becomes probable that tofal contract costs will exceed {otal contract revenues, the
Company recognizes expected losses from contracts as an expense immediately.

Others
Insurance and other claims are recognized as revenue on certainty of receipt basis,

[ncome on investment is recognized based on the lerms of the Investment. Income from mutusl fund
scheme having fixed maturity plans s accounted on declaration of dividend or on maturily of such
investments. Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis faking info account the amourd
outstanding and the rates applicable. For all other financial assels measured at amortised cos! interest

income is recarded using the Effective Inerest Rate (EIR).
Accounting of intangible assets under service concession arrangement

The Companyhas Toll Road Concession rights where it Designs, Builds, Finances, Qperates and Transfers
(DBFOT) infrastructure used lo provide public service for a specified period of time, These arrangemaents
may include Infrastructure used in a public-to-private service concession arrangemeant for its entire Lseful

life,

These arrangements are accounted for based on the natuwre of the consideration. The intangible assel
model is used fo the extent that the Company receives a right {a license)} to charge users of the public
service. The financial asset model is used when the Company has an unconditional contractual right to
receive cash or another financial asset from or al the direction of the grantor for the construclion services.
When the unconditional right to receive cash covers only part of the service, the two models are combingd
fo account separately for each component. If the Company performs more than one service (e,
consfruction or upgrade services and operation services) under a single confract or arrangement,
consideration received or receivable is allocated by reference o the relative fair values of the services

delivered, when the amounts are separately identifiable.

Intangible assets model!
intangible assets arising out of service concession arrangements are accounted for as intangible assets

where the Company has a contractual right to charge users of service when the projects are completed.

The intangible assets is measured at he fair value of consideration transferred to acquire asset, which is
the fair value of consideration received or receivabie for the construction services deliverad.

Amortization of concession intangible assets
The Intangibie asset recognized are amortised over the concession period on time proportion basis on

Straight Line method over the period of the concession,

Financial assets model
The financial asset mode! applies when the operator has an unconditional right to receive cash or another

financial asset from the grantor in remuneration for concession services. In the case of concession
services, the operator has such an unconditional right if the grantor contractually guarantees the payment
of amount specified or determined in the contract or the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
users of public service and amounts specified or determined in the Contract.

Financial Assets resulting from application of Appendix C of Ind AS 115 are recorded in the Balance Sheet
under the heading "Cther Financial Assets” and recognized at amortised cost.

However in case of certain arrangements, the contract may include a payment commitment on the part of
the concession grantor covering only part of invesiment, with the balance 1o be recovered from by charging
users of service . In such arrangements the investment amount guaranteed by the concession gramior is
recognized under the financial asse! model and the residual balance is recognized under the Intangible

asset model.

Any asset carred under concession arrangements is derecognized on disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its future use or disposal or when the contractual rights to the

financial asset expire.

Maintenance obligations

Contractual obligations to maintain, replace or restore the infrastructure (principally resurfacing costs and
major repairs and unscheduled maintenance which are required to maintain the Infrastructure asset in
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operational condition excepl for any enhancement element) are recognized and medgsured af the best eslimale
of the expendilure required 1o seltle the present obligation al the balance shaet date for which next regurfacing
would be required as per the concession arrangement. The proviston is discounted to is present value nl &
pre-tax rate that reflects current markel assessments of the time value of money and (he risks specific 1o
the liability.

3.6 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabililios are measured af the amount expecied 1o be recovered from or
paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and lax laws used o compute the amount are those (hat are
enacled or substantively enacted al the reporling dale in the countries where the Gompany operates and
generates taxable incore. Current income tax refating to items recognized outstde the Statement of Profit
and Loss is recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or
in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation o the underlying transaction either in offier
comprehensive income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates posilions taken in the fax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and

eslablishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the balance sheet approach on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounds for financial reporting purposes at the reporting

date.

Deferred lax liabilities and assels are recognized for all taxable temporary differences

Deferred {ax assets are recognizedfor unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax

fosses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be availabie to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporling date and are
recognized to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable profits will aflow the deferred tax

asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and lax laws) that have been

enacled or substantively enacted al the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the Statement of Profit and Loss is recognized outside
the Statement of Profit and Loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items
are recognized in correfation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly

in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate lo the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority,

3.7 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly altribufable to the acquisition, consiruction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of the assel. All other berrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the

borrowing costs.

3.8 Leases

Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating expense in the income statement on a straight
line basis over the lease term,
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3.9 Confingent Habilities

A contingent liabilily s & possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occcurrence or non-ocourence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the controb of the
Company or a pregent obligation thal is nol recognised because I is rol probable (hal an outflow of
resources will be required (o sellfe the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases
where there is a labilly thatl cannot be recognised because it cannol be measured reliably. The contingent
liability s not recognised In the books of accounts bul its existence Is disclosed in the Financial
Statements.

3.10  impalrment of nondinanclal assets

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, An impairment loss is recognized for the amount by which the asset's
cafrying amount exceeds ts recovarable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's failr value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impaitmant, assets are grouped al the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of the cash
inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating unilg). Non-financial assels that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each raporting period.

3.11Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (fegal or constiuctive) as a result of
a pasl everd, it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
seftle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the
Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursedthe reimbursement is recognized as a
separate assel, but only when the refmbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presemted in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate
that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the fability, When discounting is used, the increase in
the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

3.12 Empioyee benefits

(i) Short term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-menetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly
within 12 months after the end of the period in which the smployess render the relaled service are
recognized in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at
the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the balance sheet,

(i) Leave obligations
The Company provides sick ieave and privilege leave to its amployees.

Privilege and sick leave obligation is provided based on acluarial valuation which takes into account
the estimated portion of leave that will be en-cashed, availed and the portion that will fapse. The
portion that is expected to be en-cashed is provided for based on the basic satary of the employee
and for the portion that is expected to be availed, the valuations are based on the employees’ total
compensation. The liability for earned leave is also classified as current where it is expected to be
availed/ en-cashed during the next 12 months. The remaining portion is classified as non-current. The
amounts of current and non-current liability are based on actuarial estimates.

(iii} Post - employment obligations
The Company operates various post-employment schemes, including
(a) defined benefit plans such as gratuity
(b) defined contribution plans such as provident fund.

Gratuity Obligations

The liability or asset recognized in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity plans is
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the prasent valug of the defingd benefit obligation at the snd of the reporting period less the fair
valug of plan assets, The defined benefit obligation is calculated annuslly by independen! actuariss
using the prafecied unit credil method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated fulure
cash outllows by reference 10 market yietds al the and of the reporting perled on government bonds
that have lerms approximating 1o the terms of the related obligation.

The net inlerest cost is calculated by applying the discount rife Lo the net batance of the defined
benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assels. This cost s included in employee benefil expense
ir the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gaing and losses arising from experience adjusiments and changes in actuariel
assumptions are recognizad in the period in which they ocour, directly in other comprehensive
income. Thay are included in retained eamings in the Statement of Changes in Equity and in the

balance sheel,

Changas in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resuliing from pian amendments o
curlaiiments are recognized immedialely in profil or logs as past service cost.

Defined Contribution plans

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as per local
regulations. The Company has no furlher payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are accounled for as defined contribution plans and the contributions are
recognized as employee benefit expense when {hey are due. Prepaid contributions are recognized
as an assel to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the fulure payments is available,

3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheel comprise cash at banks and on hand and shortderm
deposits with an original malurity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of

changes in value.

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term
deposits, as defined above, net of cutstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integraf part of

the Company’s cash management.

3.14 Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair vatue on the date a derivative contract is entered inte and are
subsequently re-measured to their fair valize at the end of each reporting period.

3.16 Trade Payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). if not, they are presented as

non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are recogrized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method,

3.16 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair
value through Statement of Profit and Loss, net of directly attributable transaction cost to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame
established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on_the. .
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tracte date, .., the date that the Company commils lo purchase or selt the assel.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assels are classifiod in following citegories:
» ot amorlised cosl

*  al fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

=l falr vatue through other comprehensive income (FVEOGH

Financial Asaets at amortised cost
Financial assels are measured at the amortised cost If both the following conditions are mal:

a) The assel s held within a business model whose objective is to hold assefs for collecting confractueal
cagh flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dales to cash flows that are solely payments of
principat and inlerest (SR on the principal amount outstanding.

This category iz the most relevant 1o the Company. All the Loans and other receivables under financial
assets (except Ihvestments) are non-derivalive financial assets with fixed or determinable payments tha

are nof quoted in an active market.

Afler inftial measurement such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cosl using the
Effective Interest Rale (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an inlegral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. This calegory generally applies to loans and other

receivahles.

Financial Assets at Fair Value through Statement of Profit and Loss/Other Comprehensive income

All investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company has investment in muiual
funds which are held for trading, are classified as at FVTPL. The Company makes such election on an
instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable,

If the Company decides to classify an instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the Other Comprehensive Income. There is no recycling
of the amounts from Other Comprehensive Income (OCH o the Statement of Profit and Loss, even on sale
of invesiment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or foss within equity, instruments
included within the FVTPL category are measured af fair value with all changes recognized in the

Statement of Profit and Loss.
De-recognition

A financial assel (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of the Company’s similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognized (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet) when:

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a 'pass-through'
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred subsiantially alt the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
assel, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of
ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues lo recognize the transferred asset to the
extent of the Company's conlinuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognizes an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.
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Impalrment of financial aseels

The Company assesses on a lorward looking basls the axpectad credil losses associnted with its asgeds
carried al amortised cost and FVYOCI The impaiment methodotogy appled depends on whellsr there has
been a significant increase n cradit sk,

The Company has three types of financial assels subject to Ind AS 100's axpectad credit oy model;
*  Loans recetvables measured al amontised cost

» Retenfions receivable, grant receivabile from NHAI
*  Loans given to employees
The Impalrment methodology for each class of financial assels slated above is as follows:

Loans receivables measured af amortised cost: Loansracelvables al amortised cost are generatly shor
term In nature considered to be low risk, and thus the impairment provision is determined as 12 months

expacled credil losses,

l.oans given to employees: For loans given to employees outstanding as on the repoiting dates, the has
determined reliably that assessing the probability of defaull al the initial recoghition of each and every loan
or receivable would result in undue cost and efiorl. As permitted by Ind AS 109, the credit provigion will be
delermined based on whether credif risk is low only at each reporing date, untif the loan is derecognized.
Using the impairment methodofogy the Company has assessed thal no loan loss allowance needs o be
recorded in the books of accounts.

Expected credit loss (ECL") impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the paeriod is
recognized as income/ expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under
the head 'other expenses’ in the P&L. The balance shest presentation for various financial instruments is

described below:

Financial assels measured as at amorlized cost and other confraciual revenue receivables - ECL is
presented as an alfowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance
sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount, Unlil the asset meets write-off criteria, the
Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

Financial Liabilities

Initiai recognition and measurement

Financial liabifities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through Statement
of Profit and Loss, foans and borrowings, trade payables or other payables.

All financial liabitities are recognized initially at fair value.

The Company's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, joans and borrowings including bank
overdrafis and other payables,

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recoghnition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subseguently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. However, the Company
has borrowings at floating rates. The impact of restatement of effective interest rate, year on year due to
reset of interest rate, is not matetial. Gains and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss
when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the transaction cost amortization process.

Retention money payable

This is the category most relevant to the Company. Retention moneysare measured at Fair value initially.
Subsequently, they are measured at amortised cost using the EIR (Effective interest rate) method. Gains
and losses are recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as

through the EIR amortization process.
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Derecopiition

A financial liabilty is derecognized when the obligation wder the labilty Is discharged o cancelled o
expires. When an existing financlal llability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantialfy
different tenme, or the lerms of an existing labllity are subslantiolly modified, such an axchange or
modification i frested ne the de-recognition of the orlginal labilly and the recognition of a new Hability,
The diference In the respective carrying amounts s recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Offsetting of financial ingtruments

Firancial asseds and financial Habilitles are offsel and the ned amount is reporied in the balance shaet if
thare i o currently enforceable fegal rght to offset the recognizad amounts and there is an interntion to
settle on o nel basis, to realize the assels and sellle the liabifities simultaneously.

Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments -principal only swaps to hedge its foreign currency
risks. Such derivative financiat instruments are iniially recognized at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered indo and are subsequently re-measured at falr value, Derivatives are carried
as financial assels when the fair value is positive and as financial liabitities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or fosses arising from changes in the fair value of derivalives are taken directly to Statemant of
Profit and Loss.

Segment information

The Company is engaged in “Road Infrastructure Project” which in the context of Ind AS 108 “Operating
Segment" is considered as the only segment. The Company's activities are restricted within india and
hence, no separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evalualed and are based on historical experience and other
factors, includingexpectations of fidure events that may have a financial impact on the entity and that are
believed to be reasonable underthe circumstances.

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concesning the future. The resulting accounting estimates
will, by definilion, seldom equal the relaled aclual results, The estimates and assumptions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities are disclosed

below.

{i) Applicability of service concession arrangement accounting to toll roads concessionaire
arrangements

The Company has determined that Appendix C of Ind AS 115 'Service concession arrangements’ is
applicable 1o the Company which provides on accounting by the operators for public-to-private service
concession arrangements. The Company has entered inlo concession arrangement with NHAI as per which
the Company would participate in the Design, Build, Finance, Operate and Transfer (DBEGT) basis the toll
roads infrastructure. After the end of the concession arrangement, the Company has fo transfer the
infrastructure i.e. toll roads constructed to National Highway Authorities of India (NHAL).

Accordingly the Company has recognized the intangible assels recognized as per the accounting policy
mentioned in Note no 3.5 'Accounting of intangible assets under service concessionaire arrangement’.

(it} Income taxes

The Company has recognized deferred tax assets refating to carried forward tax losses to the extent there
are sufficienttaxable temporary differences relating to the same taxation authority against which the unused
tax losses can be utilized. Mowever, the wilization of tax losses also depends on the ability of the Company
to salisfy certain tests at the time the losses are recouped. Management has forecasted future taxable
profits and has therefore recognized deferred tax assets in relation fo tax losses.
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(liijAmortzation of concassion Intangisle assels

The Inangible assel recognizad are amortised over the concession period on fime proportion basis on
Straight Line method over the period of the concession.

(iv} Impairment of concesslon intangible assets

The Company tesls intangible assets and cash generafing units have suffered any impainment, in
accordance with the accounting pelicy stated In note 3.11. The recoverable amount of eachcash generating
unit has been delarminad basad on the greater of valug-in-use and fair value less costs to sell caloutations.
These caleulations require the use of assumplions regarding traffic flows, discount rates, growth rates arid
other faclors affecling operaling activities of the cash generating units.

(v} Fair valuation of derivatives and other financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active markel is determined using valuation
lechniques, The Company uses #ts judgments to select a variety of methods and makes assumptioris fha
are mainly based on niarkel conditions existing at each balance sheet date,

(vi) Provision for resuwfacing obligation (major maintenance expenditure)

The Company records the resurfacing obligation for s present obligation as per the concession
arrangement lo maintain the toll roads at every five years during the concession period. The provigion is
included in the Financial $tatements at the present value of the expecled future payments. The calculations
to discount these amounts to their present value are based on the estimated timing of expenditure occurring

on the roads.

The discount rate used 1o value the resurfacing provision at ils present value is determined through
reference to the nature of provision and risk associated with the expenditure.

Recent accounting pronouncements

Ind AS 116 L.eases:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporale Affairs has notified Ind AS 116, Leases. Ind AS 116 will
replace the existing leases Standard, ind AS 17 Leases, and related Interpretations. The Standard sets
out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both
parties fo a contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting
modeld and requires a lessee to recognize assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12
months, untess the underlying asset is of low vaiue. Currently, operating lease expenses are charged fo
the Statement of Profit and Loss. The Standard also comlaing enhanced disclosure requirements for
lessees. ind AS 116 substantially carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in Ind AS 17.

The effective date for adoption of Ind AS 118 is annual periods beginning on or after Aprif 1, 2019. The
standard permits two possible methods of transition:

+  Full retrospective — Retrospectively to each prior period presented applying Ind AS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

*  Modified refrospective — Retrospectively, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the Standard
recognized at the date of initial application.

The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the Ind AS financial statements.

Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncertainty over income Tax Treatments:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Ind AS 12 Appendix C, Uncerfainty over
Income Tax Treatments which is o be applied while performing the determination of taxable profit (or
loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates, when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments under Ind AS 12. According fo the appendix, companies need to determine the
probability of the refevant tax authority accepting each tax treatment, or group of tax freatments, that the
companies have used or plan to use in their income tax filing which has to be considered to compute the
maost likely amount or the expected value of the tax treatment when determining taxable profit (tax loss),
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax rates. The standard permits two possible

methods of transition-
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i) Fult retrospective approach-Under this approach, Appendlx G will bi applied refrospectively to each
prior reporting period presented in accordance with ind AS B-Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors, without using hindsight and

i) Retrospeclively with cuniulative effect of initiafly applying Appendix G recognized by adiusting edquity
on iniial application, without adjusting comparatives. The eflective date for adoption of Ind AS 12
Appendix C is annual perieds beginning on or after April 1, 2018, The Company will adopt the standard
on April 1, 2019 and has dacided to adjust the cumulative effect in equity on the date of initiat application
ie Aprit 1, 2019 without adjusting comparatives.

The Company is currently avaluating the effect of this amendmend on the Ind A8 financial statements.

Amendment to ind AS 12 Income laxes:

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments {o the guidance in Ind A& 12,
‘Income Taxes’, in conneclion with accounting for dividend distribution taxes. The amendment clarilies
that an entity shall recognize the income fax conseguences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according lo where the enlity originally recognized those pust
transactions or events. Effective dale for application of this amendmend is annual period beginning on or
after April 1, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the effect of this amendment on the Ind AS

financial statements,

Amendment to ind AS 19~ Plan amendment, curtaiilment or settlement-

On March 30, 2019, Ministry of Corporate Affairs issued amendments lo Ind AS 19, ‘Employee Benefils',
in connection with accounling for plan amendments, curtaliments and sefflements. The amendments

require an entity:

+ {0 use updated assumptions fo determine current service cost and nel interest for the remainder of (he
petiod after a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement; and

* to recognize in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on setltlement, any reduction
in a surplus, even if that surpfus was not previously recognised because of the impact of the asset
ceiling. Effective date for application of this amendment is annual period beginning on or after 1 April
2019, The Company is currendly evalualing the effect of this amendment on the Ind AS financial

statements.
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Nole 4 - Intangible assets (including intangible assets undar development)

¥ Milkons

Particulars

Toll Collection rights

intangiblo assels
under development

Year ended March 2018

Opening gross camying amourn! 17,930,269 1.666.19
Additions 4,305.27
Digposals “ “
Closing groé& carrylng amount 17,930.29 5,901 46
Accumulated amortization and impalrment

Opening accumidated amortization and impairment 301.88

Amorttization charge for the year 786.29

Disposais .

Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 1,178.17 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2018 16,752.12 5,901.46
As at 31st March, 2019

Opening gross carrying amount 17,930.29 §,801.48
Additions 6,660.34 3,299.45
Disposals - 6,660.34
Closing gross carrying amount 24,590.63 2,640.67
Accumulated amortization and impairment

Opening accumulated depreciation and impatrment 1,178.17 -
Depreciation charge for the year 860.73 .
Disposals B -
Closing accumulated amortization and impairment 2,038.90 -
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2019 22,651.73 2,540.57

Note :

1. The above Intangible assets (inciuding intangible assets under development) are other than internally generated.

2. The above Intangible assets (including intangible assets under development) are pledged as security with lenders.

3. Flat at Boisar in Thane district of Rs 1.68 Million is included in gross biock of intangible assets.
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Note & - Fhiianclal Assels - Current

¥ Milliong

Particulars

As ot A al
3st Mareh, 2008 318t March, 2018

Note 5 {a) - lvestments -

Investment in mutual funds { on Market Value)

Quoted
S8 Ultra Shorl Term Debt Fund - Growlh Plan
March 31, 2018 : (423692176 Units) @ 2261.847 per unil)

Agrgregate amount of quoted investments and market value thersof

Note 8 (1) - Cash and Casgh equivalents

Cash and cash eguivalents
Balances with banks
- in current aocounts

Cash on hand

Note 6 (c) - Other financial assets - current

Grant receivable from NHAF

Security deposits

Receivable from change of scope (NHAI) and others
Claims receivable from NHAI

Movement on Grant receivable from NHAL

As at beginning of the year
Accrued Interest

Grant Received during the year
Grant accounted for during the year

As at end of the year

Note 6 - Other Current assets

Advance to vendors
Advance to employees
Prepaid Expenses

Duties and taxes receivable

. 964 09
. TTTBEA OB
. 054 .09
1,668.64 141.49
11.90 8.07
1,680.44 14556
168.20 349,11
1.99 1.93
448.28 8.50
8.50 8.50
614,97 366.04
349.11 1,134.44
7.07 150.99
396.10 1,196.78
198.12 260.45
168.20 349,11
11.63 12.28
2.93 3.26
17.69 12.43
121.56 93.99

153.81 121.96
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Nole 7 - Share Capital and Othar eqguity

Note 7a - Authorised Share Capital T Millions

Nos of Shares As at An al

Particulars
st March, 2018 31sf Ma roh, 2018

Althe beginning of the year $,00,00,000 100.00 100.00

Aded : Increase during the year

Althe end of the year 1,001,00,000

Note7h - lssued, subscribed and paid-up equity

share capial

Al the beginning of the year 90,18,000 00.18 890.18
Add : Increase during the year - -

Althe end of the year 90,18,000 §0.18 G0.16

Note7c - Terms and rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as Equily Shares having a Par Value of Rs. 10/,

Note 7d - Reconciliation of nos of Shares
Particulars

As at As at
3tst March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Nos of Shares at the beginning of the year 90,18,000 90,18,000

Add : Nos of Shares issued during the year - -

Nos of Shares at the end of the year 90,18,000 90,18,000

Note 7¢ - Shares held by the Sponsor

Company or their subsidiaries/associates

Reliance infrastructure Limited

{Holding Company) 90,18,000 90,18,000

Note 7f - Detalis of Shareholders holding more than §% shares

Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Nos of Shares 90,18,000 80,18,000
100% 100%

% of holding

The Holding Company has pledged 45,99,180 Equity Shares for availing various term loans.
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Note Ba - Sub-ordinated debt (in nature of nguity)

Ab at As at

Particulars K ‘
¥ei March, 2019 31st March, 2018

Atthe beginning of the year 4,449.10 444510

'S

4,440.10

thcrease / (decrease) during the year

Atthe end of the year

Terms and rights attached to Sub-ordinated debts Infused by Holding Company atongwith its Subsidiaries
i} Suhordinated debt is the parl of Equity from the promoters of the Companys for the project, which is unsecured and

iMerest free as per Commen Loan agreement with the lenders;

ii} No repayment/redemption/interest servicing sllowed during the moratorium patiod of the fong ferm project loan,

Note 8b - Corporate Guarantee (in nature of pquity)

At the beginning of the year 1.20 1.20
Increase / (decrease) during the year - -
At the end of the year 1.20 120
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¥ Milliong

Particulars As ol Ag al
Jtst March, 2018 31st March, 20718

Note B¢ - Retalned Esrnings
At the beginning of the year 2,969.28 297147
Net Profit for the Period {11.39) (6.99)
Hams of other comprebiensive income recognised
directly in retained sarnings

~ Remeasuremens of post-amployements 4.29 {1.20)

obligations (net of lax)

Dividends paid during the year « -
Atthe end of the year 2,062.18 2.068.28
Note 8d - Securities Premium Account
At the beginning of the year 810.72 810.72
Premium on shares issued during the year - -
At the end of the year 810.72 810.72

Nature and purpose of securities premium
Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares, The same is utilised in accordance

with the provisions of the act.
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Noie 9 (4) - Borrowings - Non current ¥ Millions
Particulars As at A ol

Myt March, 2018 31si March, 208
Becured,

Tetim loans
From banke

Rupee lerm loan 10,011.37 $,243.40

Fofelgn currency loan 2,984,064 3,004 30
From fingncial instiiutions

Rupiese term loan 4,752,656 3.861.46
Total 17,748.56 16,160 34

Rupee Term Loan and External Commercial Borrowings (ECH) from Banks & Financial institutions :

The Borrowlngs areé secured by the way of terms stated in Common Loan Agreement entered betwaen the company

and Consortium of lenders:-
(i) a first ranking pari passu mortgage/charge over all the Borrower's immoveable and movable properies, both present

and fulire, except the Project Assets ;
(i) a first ranking pari passu charge on all the Borrower's bank accounts including, bul not limiled to the Escrow

Account! ils Sub-Accounis where all revenuas, Dishursements, receivablas shall be deposited and in all funds from time
1o time deposited therein and in all Permilted Investments or ollier securities representing all amounts credited fo the

Escrow Account.

(iify a first ranking pari passu charge on alt movable tangible and infanglble assets of the Borrower (other than those
specified in paragraphs (i) above and (iv) below) inciuding but not limited to its goodwill, undertaking and uncalled
capital, both present and future, except the Project Assets.;

(iv) @ firsf ranking pari passu charge over / assignment of the right, title, interests, benefits, claims and demands of the
Bomower in, lo and under any letler of credit, guarantees (except the guarantees issued in favour of NHAI including
contractor guarantees and liquidated damages and performance bond provided by any party 1o the Project Documents,

(v} Repayment Terms -
a) Repayment of the Rupee Loan shall be in 46 (Forty Six) quarterly structured instalments starting fram 31/12/2019

) Repayment of the ECB from intesa & SBI Maurilius started from 31st March 2018 in 26 quarerly structured
instalments.
{vi) The applicable interes! rate for Rupee Term Loan varies from $1.50% to 13.50% p.a. and for ECB from Intesa and
SB| Mauwritius is 3 month Libor + 4.44%/ 4.62%
(vif) The Company has pledged 45,899,180 equity shares with {he consortuim lenders for availing various loans,

viii} The Company has not been able to comply with the financial covenants during the year in respect of non-payment
of ¥. 51.87 Millions lowards installments of repayment of principal amount of loans and ¥. 358.02 Millians towards

interest.

(ix) Maturity Profile of Secured loan from others (Principal undiscounted) is as under;

¥ Millions
Rupee Loan
Particulars ECB
From Banks From Fl
FY 2019-20 106.00 50.00 293.91
FY 2020-21 212.00 100.00 397.64
FY 2021-22 212.00 100.00 596.46
FY 2022-23 212.00 100.00 769.35
FY 2023-24 265.00 125.00 1,002.75
FY 2024-25 onwards 9,170.14 4325 54 328.49
10,177.14 4,800.54 3,388.60
Total




DA Toll Road Private Limited

Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 9 (b) - Borrowings - Current

Particulars

Unsecured

loar: froms Holding Company

Note 10 - Trade Payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enlerprizes and small entanrises
Total outslanding dues of creditors other (han micre enlepises and smail

enierprises

As al

3t March, 2019

Ag it
36l March, 2018

164,40 1h4.40
154.40 15440
106,92 41 57
106,92 AT

(a) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disclosure of payable to vendors as defined under the "Micro, Sthall and Medium Enterprise Development Act, 2008" i
based on the information available with the Company regarding the status of registration of such vendors under the said
Acl, as per the intimation received from them on requests made by the company. There are no overdue principal
amounisfinterest payable amounts for delayed payments to such vendors at the Balance Sheet date. There are ne delays
in payment made to such suppliers during the year or for any earlier years and accordingly there is no inlerest paid or
outstanding interest in this regard in respecl of payments made during the year or brought forward from previous years,

Note 11 (a} - Other financial Habilities - current

Particulars

Current Maturities of long term debt
Interest Accrued but not due
interest Accrued and due

Creditors for Capital expenditure
Employee henfits payabie

Total

Note 11 (b) - Other financial labilities - Non - current

Non - Current

Retention money payable

Derivative fiability { Mark to Market) on derivative
instruments

Total

Note 12 (a} - Provisions - Current

Provision for employee benefits
- L.eave encashment

Note 12 (b} - Provisions - Non - Current
Provision for employee henefits

- Gratuity

- L.eave encashment

Note 13 - Other current liabilities

Puties and taxes payable

As at As at

31st March, 2019 3ist March, 2018
446.91 253.76
312 3.28

358,02 -
412,38 358,46
16.18 1512
1,239.81 630.62
43.76 39.76
1.77 155.69
4553 195.74
2,67 1.97
2.67 1.87
1.22 6.19
8.92 13,14
10.14 19.33
27.52 0.66
27.52 0.66
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_ e mlllion g
Year anded Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Note 14 - Revenue
Operating income

- Construction income 283217 3,984,785
« Income from toll coflections 2,648.64 2.171.56
5,480,861 6,156,35
Note 15 - Qther income
Profiit.oss on redemption of mulusl fundg 10,18 39.32
Mark to market gain on derivaties instrimment 802 -
{ Net of Revaluation Loss)
Interest income
- On financial assets carried al amortised cost T.07 150.99
- On fixed deposits 0.36 8.80
Excess provision for Leave Encashment writlen back 1.66 -
Miscellaneous income - 0.06
5746 198,17
Note 16 - Toll Operation and Maintainence expenses
Subcontracting expenses 136.92 122.98
Maintainence of Roads 77.88 208.94
Electricity expenses 11.02 7.51
Handling Charges 3.1% 3.24
Site and other direct expenses 44,07 67.85
273.08 410.51
Note 17 - Employee benefits expenses
Salaries wages and bontis 87.682 59.41
Contribution to provident funds and other funds 3.60 3.44
Gratuity 2.1 2.1
Leave encashment - 6.86
Staff welfare expenses 1.64 1.38
65,27 73.19
Note 18 - Finance Costs
Interest on loan 1,426.73 1,038.33
Other finance charges 47.47 20.81
Derivative hedging cost - 23.30
1,474.20 1,082.44
Note 19 - Other expenses
Rent 2.94 -
Rates & taxes : 0.08 0.26
insurance 19.75 18.16
l.egal and Professional Charges 34,79 36.00
Expenditure toward Corporate Social responsibility 0.33 14.80
Auditors Remuneration 0.35 0.47
Traveiling and Conveyance 4.30 -
Other misceflanecus expenses 4,22 1.02

66.73 70.71
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Note 20 - Fair value measurements

Financiat Instruments by category ¢ Milions
Signflcance of financial Insfruments ]
Year ended Year ended
——_— Particulars March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Einancial assols
At amortised Cost
Gradit recelvable from NHAI 168.20 3481
Sucunty Deposits 1.99 1.63
Ingurance Claim receivables 448.28 B.50
Cash and Cash equivaland 1,6680.44 14956
Clalins receivable from NHAI 6.50 6,50
At Fair value through profit & loss
Mutuaf fund fnvesiments . 054.08
Total financial nssets ' 2,196.42 146966
Financial labllities
At amortised Cost
Floating Rate Borrowings 18198.47 15363.00
Short term Borrowings 164.40 154.40
Trade Payables 106,92 41.57
Refention money payable 43.76 39.76
Interest acerued 361.14 3.28
Employee Benefits Payable 16.38 1512
Creditors for capital expenditure . 412.38 358.46

At Fair vatue through profit & loss
Foreign currency forward exchange contracts 1.77 155009

Toftal financial llabilities 19295.22 16131.58




DA Toll Rond Private Limited
Notes to Financhal Stalements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 21 « Falr value Hierarchy

{a} Falr value hlerarchy - Recutring fair vaiue measuremants ¥ Millions
Verranded Yoar ended
Particutars March 31, 2019 ~ March 31,2018
Financial assels
At Fair value through profit & foss
Level 1
Mutual fund Investments - 954 0%
Derivatives not desighated as hedges
Level 2
Principal swag -
. 954 09

Total financhal agsels

Financial liabillties

Derivatives not designated as hedges
Level 2
Principal swap 1.77 1!

[8-4
[
Lond
&

Total financial liabilities 1.77 165.99

(b} Fair value hierarchy - Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair vajues are
disclosed

. Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Financial assets

Level 3

Grant receivable from NHAI 168.20 34911

Total financial assets 168.20 349.11
Financial ttabilities

Level 3

Floaling Rate Borrowings 18,198.47 15,363.00

Debentures - .

Retention money payable 43.76 3976

NHAI Premium Payable - -

Total financial liabilities 18242.23 1540277

Recognised fair value measurements
Level 1. Leve! 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes mutual funds

that have quoted price. The mutual funds are valued using the closing NAV.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximise the use of observable market data and rely as
litle as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required 1o fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in levet 2,

Level 3; If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3. This is the case for borrowings, debentires, Rerention money payable and hedging derivative included in fevel

3

Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Spegcific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

* the use of quoted market prices or dealer quotes for simifar instruments

+ the fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts and principal swap is determined using forward exchange rates,

at the balance sheet date



(¢} Fair vadue of finencial assets and Hahilties measured at smorlised cost

VYear ended Year anded
Particulars March 31,2019 March 31, 2018
Financlal assels
Garrying value of financial assets al amorised cost
Gran! receivable from NIHA 168.20 348,11
Total Financial agsets at amontised cost 168,20 34811
Falr value of financial assets carried st amortised cost
Grarnil rocefvable from NHAT 168.20 349,11
Total Fair value of financial assets at amortised cost ) TA68.20 34911
Financial Habilitics
Carrylng value of financial liabilities st amortised cost
Floating rate borrowigns 18,198.47 15,363.00
Debantures ~ -
Retention money 43.76 39.76
NHAI Premium Payable - -
18,242.23 C15,402.77
Falr value of financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
floating rate borrowigns 18,198.47 15,363.00
Debentures - "
Retention money 43.78 39.76
NHA) Premium Payable - -
18,242.23 16,402.77

The carrying value amounts of fixed deposits, interest accrued on depoists, retention money receivable,
insurance claim receivable, cash and cash equivalents,

trade payables, interest accrued, employee henefits payable and oreditoss for capital expenditure
approximate their fair value due to their short term nature.

For financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value, the carrying amounts are equal to the fair
vaiues.



DA Todt Road Peivide Limited
Naotes to Finanehs) Statements us of and for the yéur aaded Murch 41, go1g

Note 22 - Concostlon arrangements - Main features

Name of antily  [Description of the Signiftcant terms of the arvangoment Intangite Assels L1 Flnangial Assat
arrangement Gross book | Net book value
o valug - i
DA Toll Road Privete [Financing, design, buiiding | Period of Goncession. 2019 - 2058 March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2010 | March 31, 2019
timiled and opesation of 180 Remuneraiion ; Toll 24,600.62 22.664.73 168,20

kilametre fong six lane Lokt [irvestinent grant from concession grantor © | Mareh 31, 2098 | March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2018
foad between Deliv and Yo
Agra on National Highway infeastrueture retum ol the end of 17.830.29 16,762.12 At
2 concession period : Yoz

investment and renewaf obligations © Nil

Re«icing dates ; Yiarly

Basls upon which re-pricing or re-
negotiation is datermined ; Inflallon
Premium payale o granior ; Nil




DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statemenis ag of and for the year ended March 31, 2019

a)

b)

Note 23 - Forelgn currency exposure

Parttculars of derivative Inslruments

Amounts In USD in milllons

Youar .en.ded

Y aar anded

Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Principal only Swap 33.29 35.86
33.20 35,86
No of ingtruments
No derivative instruments are acquired for speculation purpose. 4 4
Foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instrument or otherwise:
Particul Year ended Year ended
articulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Borrowings (including interest accrued b not due) in USD in millions 16.02 11.77
Borrowings (including interest accrued but not due) in INR in millions 1,038.85 767.04
1,038.85 767.04
Note 24 - Expenditure in Forelgn Currency Amounts Rs in milions
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Inferest on External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) 228.41 162.07
Agency fees on Externa! Commercial Borrowings (ECB) - 0.11
228.41 19217

Note 26- Capitalisation of exchange differences on long term foreign currency monetary item

The Company has opted to defer / capitalize exchange differences arising on long-term foreign currency monetary item in
accordance with para 46A of AS 11 of previous GAAP. Ind AS 21 requires all exchange gain/losses arising on foreign currency
monetary to be recognized under Statement of profit and loss. The Company has availed option available under Ind AS 101 as per
which it has it can continue the Indian GAAP policy for accounting of exchange gainfloss arising on account of translation of long
term foreign currency item recognized before transition date i.e. March 31, 2015, However exchange gain / loss arising on any new
fong-term foreign currency monetary item recognized after the transition date ie. March 31, 2015 would be recognized to

staterment of profit and loss as required under Ind AS 21.




A Tolt Road Private Linvited

Notos fo Flnancial SBtatements as of and for the yosr ended March 34, 2016

Note 26 - Taxation

268(8) InCome LB gXpENEs ) ¥ Milllons
March 31, 2019 March 3%, 2048

(a} Income tax exponse

Current tax

Courrenst tax an profits for the year 1.80 1.00

Adjuslimends for current tax of prior petiods 4#.43 >

Tola! curront tax expongoe {A) 6,93 1.00

Defarad tax

Decroaseiincreasa) in doferred tax assats 130.20 311.43

(PDecrease)incioase it deferd lax kobilies {104.86) (280.45)

Totat deforred tax axpansel{benefit) {8 2073 31.08

Income fax expense {A+B) 34.66 32.08

incomae tex expense is attributable io;

March 31, 2018

March 31, 2018

Profil from con!inﬁing operations Delole FCOMmE (ax xpeGe 21,687 23.84
Tax at the Indian tax rate of 34,34.9440%/31.20% o ] 8.60 8.35
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible (laxable) in calculating laxable
fncome:;
Income not considered for Tax purpose
Expenses not allowed for (ax purpose - 7.44
Adjustments for current fax of prior periods 4,43 -
Corporale social responsibility expenditure “ 517
Olher tems 21.63 1112
Income tax expense charged to statement of Profit and Loss 34.66 32.08
26(b) Deferred tax {liahility) / Asset
¥ Millions
The balance comprises temporary differences attributable to :
As at
As at
Particulars 3ist March, 318t March, 2018
2019
Unused tax losses carried forward 32.93 22.44
intangible assels
Toll collection rights inciuding IA under Deviopment 235.04 372.37
Other items
Grant receivable from NHA} {49.36) (121.99)
Borrowings {52.08) (69.94)
Retirement benefit obligation 4.00 7.44
Other items { On investmen! in Mutual Fund) - (11.07)
Net deferred lax (liability)/asset 170.52 199.256
Movement in deferred tax Hability / asset balances
Unused intangible
Tax Assets tncluding Others Totai
Particulars Losses 1AUD
As at April 01, 2017 - 661.00 {430.67} 230.33
Charged#{credited) during the year
to profit or loss 22.44 (288.63} 234.47 {31.72)
to other comprehensive income - - 0.64 0.64
As at March 31, 2018 22.44 372.37 (195.56) 199.25
As at April 01, 2018 22.44 372.37 (195.56} 199.25
Charged/{credited) during the year
1o profit or loss o 10.49 {137.33} 100.06 {26.78)
1o other comprehensive income - - - {1.95) (1.95)
As at March 31, 2019. 32.93 235.04 (97.44) 170.52




DA Toll Road Privats Limsited
Notes to Financlal Statements as of and for the year ended March 34, 2019

Noto 27 - Financisi rigk management

The Company activities axpotes 1 to market risk, liquidity risk and sredil rigk. In order to minimize any adverse affects on
the financlal performasnce of the group, derivative financial ingdruments, such as principal only swaps are entgred o hedge
cerldin fareign curmency risk exposure. Derivalives wre used exclusively for hedging purpose and nol as frading or
spactdative ingliuments

This note explaing the source of risk which the entity i exposed o and how the entily is manage the risk,

Risk Exposure ariging  Measurement Managemoent
from
Cradit rigk Cash and cash Aging analysis Diversification of
equivalents, rade  Crodit ratings tank deposits, cradit
recaivables, Himitg and letters of
financial assets cradit

moeasured al
amartiged cost.

Marked rigk — {oreign exchangs Racognized Cash flow Actively Managed
financial assels and forecasting
[rshitities nol Sensitivity analysis

denominated in
indian rupae (INR)
Market risk —- interaesl rate Long-term Sensitivity analysis Actively Managed
borrowings al
variable Rates

Liquidity risk Borrowings and Rolling cash flow  Avaitability of
other liabiities forecasts committed credit
lines and borrowing
facilities

The Company’s risk managemenl is carried out by a project finance team and central treasury team (group treasury)
under policies approved by board of directors. Group treasury identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risk in close co-
operalion with the group’s operating units. The Management of the Company provides writlen principles for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as inleres! rate risk and credit risk, use of derivative
financiat instrument and non-derivative financial instrument, and investments of excess liquidity.

Commodity risk:

The Company requires for implementation (construction, operation and maintenance) of the projects, such as cement,
bitumen, steel and other construction materiats. For which, the Company entered into fixed price contract with the EPC
contractor and O&M Contractor so as 1o manage our exposure to price increases in raw materials, Hence, the sensitivity

analysis is not reguired.
Market risk — interest rate risk

The Bank loans follows floating rates with resets defined under agreements. While interest rate fluciuations carry a risk on
financiats, the Company earn toll income which is linked to WP thus providing a natural hedge to the interest rate risk,

a} interest rate risk exposure ¥ Mittions
i Year ended Year ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Variable Rate Borrowings 18,198.47 16,363.00
Fixed Rate Borrowings - -
Total 18,198.47 15,363.00
Sensitivity
Profit or loss is sensitive to higher/lower interest income from borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates.
. Year ended Year ended
Impact on profit/loss after tax March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Interest rates (increase) by 100 basis points (143.77) (121.37)

Interest rates decrease by 100 basis points 143.77 121.37




DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes o Financial Strtoments as of and for the vear ended March 31, 2018

Note 27 « Financial sk management

Currency rigk:

Foreign cuimency sk Is the risk that the falr valug or fulure cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of
changes in foredgn exchange rates. The Company exposure to the rigk of changes in floreign exchange retes
refates to the Commpany foreigh currency loan be. Exlemal Gommaercial Borrowings (ECB). The Company g
an aggregate of USG50 wn ECBs

Foretgn currency Rsk exposure £ Mitllons

Yeur ended TV Ear ended
Particulars March 31, 2019 Mta_rr:h 31,2018
Financlal llabilities
interest Accrued on lorefgn borrowings 62.79 1.45
External commercial borrowings 3,278.66 310245
Total 3,341.34 3,104, 10

Sensitivity analysis:
The following tables demonsirate the sensilivity o a reasonably possible change in USD exchange rales, with all

other variables held constant, The impact on the Company 's profit before tax is due o changes in the falr value of
monetary liabilies. The Company has used exemption under Ind AS 101 for existing fong term foreign currency
non-monetary items. The Company continue to apply the policy adopted for treatment of exchange differences
arising on fong-term foreign currency monetary items pertaining o the acquisition of a depreciable asset for items
recognized on or before March 31, 2013 and hence, not considered in disclosure of foreigh currency sensitivity,
With all other variables held constant, the Company 's profit before lax is affected through the impact on change of
foreign currency rate on interest accrued but ot due on ECB toans, as folfows

Sensitivity T Millions
Year ended Year ended
Impact on profit after tax March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
INR/USD closing exchange rale 69.16 65.18
INR/USD (increase) by 6% (158.38) (147.13)
158.38 147 .13

INR/USD decrease by 6%




DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financlal Statements as of and for the year ended March 34, 2019

Note 27 ~ Financial Ak management

Liquidiy risk - Tabie

Ligquidity risk is the risk that the Company may not be able to meet its present and future cash and colfateral obligations without incurring
unacceptable lossss. The Company objective is lo, at all times maintain oplimum levels of liquidity 1o mee! ls cash and collateral
reguirements. The Company closely monitors its fiquidity posiion and deploys a robugl cash manggemant syslem. § malntaine adecuale
sources of financing including debt from banks at an optimized cost. The liquidity risk is managed on the basts of expected maturily dates of
the financial llablities. The average credit period taken 10 sette trade payables is aboul 30 to 60 days. The carrylng amounfs are assumed 1o

bz & reasonable approximation of fair value. The following table analyses financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturllies.

The table below analyses the Company ‘s non-derivative financlal liabilities and net-settled derivative financial labilities ino relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheef dale to the contractual maturity date. Derivalive financial liabilites are
included in the analysls if their contractual maturities are essential for an understanding of the Hming of the cash flows, The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contraciual undiscounted cash fows.

¥ Milllons
Ag at March 31, 2019 Less than 3 Between 3 Betweent  Between 2  Qver 5 years Total
months months and 1 yearand 2 years and §
year years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 103.73 346.18 709.64 3,382.56 13,824.17 18,366.28
Trade and other payables 26.73 80.19 106.92
Other financial liabilities - 988.07 - - - 988.07
Total non-derivatives 130.46 1,414.44 709.64 3,382.66 13,824.17 19,461.26
As at March 31, 2018 Lessthan 3 Between 3 Between 1 Between 2  Qver 5 years Total
months months and 1 yearand 2  years and b
year years years
Non-derivatives
Borrowings 16.29 237,47 540.1% 267586 12,083.32 15,563.16
Trade and other payables 10.39 31.18 41.57
Other financial liabilities - 416.62 - - - 416.62
Total non-derivatives 26.69 685.27 540.11 2,675.96 12,093.32 16,021.35




DA Toll Road Private Limited
Notes to Financial Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2049

Nofe 28 - Capltal risk managemen
The Company objectivas when managing capital are to

safeguard their abilily lo conlinue as a going concern, so that they can continue to
provide returng for sharehotders and benefits for other slakeholders, and

L

Maintain an optimal capitat siructure 1o reduce the cost of capitel,

For the purpose of the Company capital management, capital includes {gsuad equity capital, share
premium, sub-debts and all other equily reserves altributable to the equity holders of the parent. The
primary objective of The Company capital management is lo maximize the shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic
condilions and fhe requirements of the financlal covenards, To mainfain o adjust the capilal
structure, The Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, retumn capilal lo
sharsholders or issue interest free sub-ordinale debt. The Company monitors capital using 4 gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company policy 8 1o keep oplimum
gearing ralio. The Company includes within net debf, interest bearing loans and borrowings, trade
payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

In order to achieve this overall objective, The Company capital management, amengs! other things,
aims fo ensure thal it meets financial covenanls attached to the interast-bearing loans and
borrowings that define capital structure requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital for year ended March 31,2019 and March 31, 2018.

Consistent with others in the inrduslry, the group monitors capital on the hasis of the totlowing gearing
ratio;

Net debt including total borrowings (net of cash and cash equivalents)
divided by

Tolal 'equity’ {as shown in the balance sheet).

The Company strategy is lo maintain a debt to equity ratio within .80 to 2.10.The gearing ratios at
March 31, 2019 and March 31, 2018 were as follows:

¥ Millions
Particulars
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Net debt (a) 16,772.42 15,367.85
Equity (b) 8,313.38 8,320.48
Net debt to equity ratio {a) / (b) 2.02 1.85
T Millfons
Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Net debt (a) 16,772.42 15,367.85
Equity (b) 8,313.38 8,320.48
Nebt debt plus Eguity (¢ = a+b) 25,085.80 23,688.33
0.67 0.65

Gearing ratio (a)/ ¢




DA Toll Road Private Limited
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Note 29- Gratuity and other post-employment bensfit plans
a) Defined contribution plan

¥ Millions

The following amount recognized as an expente in Stalement of profil and loss on account of provident fund wd othes funds. TRers are o

other obfigations olher
than the confribution payable to the respective suthorilies,

Contribution to provident fund and other funds

‘Fotal

a} Dofined benefit plan

Yoar wndad vl
C March 31,2019 $st March, 2018
4.80 3.44
160 3.44

The Company has a defined beneflit plan {Gratwity) for 18 employeas. The gratuity plan ls governed by the Payment of Gratully A, 1972

Under the Act,

amployee who has completed fiva yoars of sarvice is entitled to specific benefit, The fevel of benefits provided depends on he rsember's

fength of service and salary

al relirement age. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service gets a gratuily on depariure at 15 days salary {ast

drawn salary) for each

completed year of service as per the provision of the Paymend of Gratuily Act, 1972 wilh tolal celling on gratiity of Re. 1,000,000/~ The said

graiuity plan is funded,

The following tables sumimaries the The amounts recognised in the balance sheet and the movements in the net defined benefit obligation

over the year are as follows:

Opening defined benefit Hability / {assets)

Net empioyee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost
Current service cost

Past service cost

interest cost on benefit obligation

{Gain) / losses on seltlement

Net benefit expense

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income {OGI)

Measurement during the period due o :
Returr on plan assets, excluding amounds included in interes! expense/income)

Acluarial loss / (gain) arising from change in financial assumplions
Actuarial loss / (gain) arising on account of demographic assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses

Amount recognized in OC|

Benefits payments from plan

Closing net defined benefit liahility / {asset)

Opening fair vaiue of plan assets

Net employee benefit expense recognised in the employee cost
nterest cost / (income) on plan asset

{Gain) / losses on setflement

Net benefit expense

Amount recorded in Other Comprehensive Income (OCH)

Measurement during the period due to :
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest expense/(income)

Actuarial foss / (gain} arising from change in financial assumptions
Actuariat loss / {gain) arising on account of demographic assumptions
Experience (gains)/losses

Asset ceiling not recognised as an asset

Amount recognized in OC|

Empioyer contributions/premiums paid
Benefits Paid
Closing fair value of plan assets

Year onded A% at
March 31, 2019 31st March, 2018
16.61 12,59
218 1.8%
1.22 .87
M 277
{3.99) 2.24
(2.27} -
0.03 (0.03)
{6.22) 2.20
{1.37} {1.05)
12.32 16.514
Year ended As at

March 31, 2019

31st March, 2018

10.32

0.77

0.77

9.28
0.66

0.66

0.36

0.36
1.07
{1.08)
10.32
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Note 29 Gratulty and other post-employmient benefit plans

The net giability/asset disclosed above retales 1o Tunded plan is as follows:

Presen vatue of funded obligations
fFair value of plan assels
Amaunt not recognised as an asse! (nssel ceiling)

Not Hability is bifurcated as follows :
Cursent
Non-current

Totad

tiscount rate
Expactad rate of returnt on plan assets (p.a.)
Satary escatation rate (p.a.)

Mortatity pre-retirement

A quantifative analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Assumptions -Discount rate

Sensitivity Level

Impact en defined benefit ohligation -in % increase
Impacl on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease
Assumptions -Future sajary incroases
Sensitlvily Level

Impact on defined benefit obligation -in % increase
Impact on defined benefit obligation -in % decrease

lisdtan Assured Lives

¥ Milliong
ATV T AREH

March 31, 2019 sl March, 2018
12,32 16.61

11,10 10,32

1,22 G516

1.22 6,10

1.22 K]

T 50% 7.70%

§.00% 0.76%

Indian Agsured

Mortality Livers Mostality
(2012-14) {2005-08)
56 bp 50 by
-2.78% 4. 66%
2.82% 4.87%
50 bp 50 bp
2,98% 4. 76%
-2.86% -4.50%

The tabie below shows the expected cash flow profile of the benefils to be paid to the current membership of the plan based on past service

of the employees as af the valuation date:

Within the next 12 months {next annuai reporting period)
Belween 2 and 5 years

Between 6 and 9 years

For and Beyond 10 years

Total expected payments

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting
period

Flan Assets Compositien

Non Guoeted
Insurer Managed Funds

Year ended
March 31, 2019

As at
31st March, 201_8

2.02
5.96
5.03
7.40
20.42

10.8 years

1.26
3.73
6.92
26,16
38.07

9.42 years

Year ended
March 31, 2019

As at
31st March, 2018

11.10

10.32

11.10

10.32
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Note 30 - Related Party Transactions

As pef Ind AS-24 " Related Party Disclosure” the Company's related parties and Wasnsactions with them in the ordinary
course of business are disclosed below

(A} Parties where controf exists
Holding Company - Reliance Infrastructure Limited

Details of transactions and closing balance : T Millions

Parliculars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018

Transactions during the year :

Toll operation and maintainence expenses

Reliance Infrastructure Limited 30.89 54.00
Reimbursement of expenditure paid by
Refiance Infrastructure Limited 1.04 1.49
Balances at the year end
Inter-corporate deposit
Reliance Infrasfructure Limited 164.40 154.40
Trade payable
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 29.21
Sub-debts (in nature of equity}
Reliance Infrastructure Limited 4,44910 4,449 10
Equity share capital (excluding premium)

90.18 90.18

Reliance Infrastructure Limited



DA Toll Road Company Limiled

Notes (o Financlal Statements as of and for the year ended March 31, 2019

Note 31; Assets pledged as securily

The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are;

¥ Mitlions
Partlcutars March 31, 2019 March 31, 2018
Curremt
Financial assots
First charge
Ihvestments . 954 .04
Cash and cash equivalents 1,5080.44 140 56
Otlier Financial Assets 614.97 366.04
Non-fingncial assets
First charge
Other Curtnet Assels 153,81 121.96
Ti)lal current assets pledged as sécurlly 2,349,22 1,591,064
Non-current
First charge
inangible assets 22,851.73 16,752.12
Intangible assets under development 2,540.57 5,901.46
Other Non Finaincial Assels - -
Ofher Non Currnef Assels “
Total non-current assets pledged as security 25,002,3¢ 22,653,658
Total assels pledged as security 27,441,562 24,245.22
Note 32: Disclosure pursuant to para 44 A to 44 £ of Ind AS 7 - Statement of cash flows
¢ Millions

March 31, 2019

March 31, 2018

Long term Borrowings

Opening Balance 15,363.00 11,464.37
Loan avaited during the year 2,656.1¢ 3,872.00
Changes in Fair Value

- Impact of Effective Rate of Interest 33.22 26.67
-impact of unrealised loss on Loan 196.44 16.43
Repaid During the year {50.30) (16.47)
Closing Balance 18,198.47 15,363.00
Short term Borrowings

Opening Balance 154.40 154.40
Loan availed during the year -

Repaid During the year - -
Closing Balance 154.40 1654 .40
Interest Expenses

interest Charge as per Statement Profit & Loss/ JAUD 2,045.35 1,342.34
Changes in Fair Value

- Impact of Effeclive Rate of Interest (33.22) (26.67}
- Unwinding of Discount on provisions

- Other 3.28 {21.79)
Interest paid to Lenders {1,654.27) (1,280.60)
Closing Balance 361.14 3.28

Note 33: The Company is engaged in “Road Infrastructure Projects” which in the context of Ind AS 108
"Operating Segment" is considered as the only segment, The Company's activities are restricted within
India and hence, no separate geographical segment disclosure is considered necessary.




DA Foll Read Privade Lhnited
Notes (o Finahelnl Stateiienmis gy of mnd for the year onded Mareh 3¢, 2010

Note 34 - Earntng Por Share

Particulars areh 3 ;‘.dz‘}& o | Manch a1 so1s
Profit / Loge sirdbntable to equity shareholders {(Re Millions) (A) (11.38) {G.89)
Weighted avermage number of equily shares for basic and diloted 99,18,000 Q0,18 000
eamings per share (1)

Earnings / (Loss) per share (Baslc and diluted) (Rupees) (A/) (1.26) {0.78)
Nominat vislue of equity shares (Rupees) 16.00 D

Note 35 - Auditor Remuneration
¥ Millions

Particulars Yaoar ended Year ended
March 31, 2018 | March 31, 2018
Audil Feas .24 0.24
Certilication Feas 0.41 .22
Out of pocket Expenses - 0.61
6.36 047
Note 36 - Capital Commitments
¥ Millions
Particulars As at As al
31ist March, 2019 | 31st March, 2018
Commitmenis
Estimated value of capital conlract remaining 10 be execuled for 572.46 3.051.60
construction of Lofl roads ( nel of advance)
Note 37 - Contingent liabiiitles ¥ Millions
Ag af
Partiulars 31t March, 2019
1. Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts and under litigation
Service Tax Claims 96.27
2. Other Claims
Differences in balances as per bank loan confirmations and books of accounts mainly an account of interest
sate reselting are under reconciliation with the bankers. The company expect to settle these soen and do not 0.21
anticipate any furlher fiability on account of interest.

Note 38 - Consequent upon the de-monetisation of currency notes by Central gevernment, 1ol collection had been suspended from
November 9, 2016 to December 2, 2018 for which the company has raised claims on NHAI for reimbursement of the expenses
incurred during this petiod as per the provisions of the Concession Agreement entered into between the company and NHAI read
along with NHAI circular dated November 29,2018 and December 6, 2016 in this regard. Amount of Rs. 67.25 million claimed,
being contractually enforceable and cerlain of recovery, has been recognised as income. As al March 31, 2019, T 6.50 millions

was receivable and disclosed under Other Financials Assets — Current.

Note 39 - Events after reporting year
There are no subsequent event afler the reporting period which required adjustments to the Financial Statements.
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